CAMBRIA COMMUNITY MEETING TIME & DATE LOCATION

SERVICES DISTRICT . Cambria Veterans'

10:30 AM Memorial Hall, 1000

Main Street, Cambria,
CA 93428

Fire Protection Committee Thursday,
March 20, 2025

AGENDA

Regular Fire Protection Committee Meeting
March 20, 2025 10:30 AM

In person at:
Cambria Veterans' Memorial Hall
1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428
AND via Zoom at:
Please click the link to join the webinar: HERE
Webinar ID: 894 6807 5561
Passcode: 338146

Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the CCSD Administration Office, available for public inspection during District
business hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at
https://www.cambriacsd.org/. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting or if you need the agenda or other documents in the
agenda packet provided in an alternative format, contact the Confidential Administrative Assistant at
805-927-6223 at least 48 hours before the meeting to ensure that reasonable arrangements can be made.
The Confidential Administrative Assistant will answer any questions regarding the agenda.

1.

OPENING

1.A Call to Order

1.B  Establishment of Quorum
1.C Chair Report

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may now address the Committee on any item of interest within the
jurisdiction of the Committee but not on its agenda today. Future agenda items can be suggested at
this time. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Committee cannot discuss or act on items not on
the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA
3.A Consideration to Approve the February 20, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

REGULAR BUSINESS
4.A Discussion and Consideration of Establishing Ad Hoc Committees and Appointing


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89468075561?pwd=XROLx3gadmuWpepmHpJcaRR6j5TwPU.1

Members

4.B Discussion of Public Information Needs Related to New and Current Wildfire
Prevention Initiatives, Including Weed Abatement and Defensible Space

FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S)

ADJOURN



3A

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 20, 2025, REGULAR FIRE PROTECTION COMMITTEE MEETING OF
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

A regular meeting of the Fire Protection Committee of the Cambria Community Services District was
held at the Cambria Veterans' Memorial Hall, 1000 Main Street, Cambria, CA 93428, on Thursday,
February 20, 2025, at 10:30 AM

1. OPENING
1.A Call to Order

Chairperson Gray called the meeting to order at 10:30 am.
1.B Establishment of Quorum

A quorum was established.

Committee members present: Tom Gray, Ronald De Luca, Tony Safford, David Pierson, Arthur Chapman,
and Gordon Heinrichs.

Staff present: General Manager Matthew McElhenie, Confidential Administrative Assistant Haley
Dodson, Fire Chief Michael Burkey, and Facilities and Resources Manager David Agruirre.

1.C Chair Report

Chairperson Gray welcomed the new Committee members.
1.D Election of Committee Officers

Chairperson Gray asked for nominations for Secretary and Vice Chairperson
Committee Member Safford moved to nominate David Pierson as Vice Chair.
Committee Member Heinrichs seconded the motion.
The motion was approved: 5-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 0-Absent
Committee Member Heinrichs moved to nominate Arthur Chapman as Secretary.
Committee Member De Luca seconded the motion.
The motion was approved: 5-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 0-Absent

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

The Chair took public comment from Dan Turner, executive director of the San Luis Obispo County Fire
Safe Coucil.



3A

3. REGULAR BUSINESS

3.A Discussion and Consideration Regarding Introduction of Ordinance 01-2025 Adding
Chapter 6.05 to the Cambria Community Services District Municipal Code
Regarding Weed Abatement Standards and Consider Providing a Recommendation
to the CCSD Board of Directors

The Chair took public comment from Karin Argano, executive director of Greenspace — The Cambria
Land Trust; and Crosy Swartz.

Following discussion, a motion was made by Committee Member Safford, seconded by Committee
Member Chapman to approve draft Ordinance 01-2025 with leave for committee members to offer
further recommendations for changes and staff to make further revisions for the final draft to be
submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

The motion was approved: 5-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 0-Absent

3.B Discussion and Consideration Regarding the SLO Monterey Pine Restoration Forest
Health Grant Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and Consider Providing a
Recommendation to the CCSD Board of Directors

Committee Member Chapman moved to approve the motion to recommend to the Board of Directors to
approve and enter into the of the SLO Monterey Pine Restoration Forest Health Grant # 8 GG23617
Memorandum of Understanding

Committee Member Safford seconded the motion.
The motion was approved: 5-Ayes; 0-Nays; 0-Abstain; 0-Absent
4. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
Committee members proposed the following items for future consideration:
Evacuation routes and zones (De Luca and Heinrichs)
Funding for a fire marshal position (Pierson)
Community training and engagement (Safford)

Setting up a fire prevention website (Chapman)
Clarification on weed abatement requirements (Chapman)

S. ADJOURN

Chairperson Gray adjourned the meeting at 12:22 p.m



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

TO: Fire Protection Committee AGENDA NO. 4.A.

FROM: Michael Burkey, Fire Chief

Meeting Date: March 20, 2025 Subject: Discussion and Consideration of
Establishing Ad Hoc Committees and
Appointing Members

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that a discussion takes place for the appropriation of ad hoc committees for the
following purposes:

1. Staffing needed for inspection of developed and undeveloped properties to include commercial,
and enforcement of applicable codes and ordinances.

2. Evacuation planning.

3. Public information and other outreach.

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of an ad hoc committee is to address a specific issue or project and then be disbanded when
the task is complete. The discussion is to explore the validity, purpose and issue or topic, formulate
recommendations, and report back to the committee for consideration.



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

TO: Fire Protection Committee AGENDA NO. 4.B.
FROM: Michael Burkey, Fire Chief
Meeting Date: March 20, 2025 Subject: Discussion of Public Information Needs

Related to New and Current Wildfire
Prevention Initiatives, Including Weed
Abatement and Defensible Space

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Fire Protection Committee discusses the state code provisions and provide
guidance to the proposed Ad Hoc Committee.

DISCUSSION:

The committee will discuss the state code provisions related to defensible space and weed abatement.
The goal is to provide guidance to the Public Information ad hoc committee (see item 4A) and the Fire
Chief in preparing materials for guidance to Cambria residents on these subjects.

Attachments: California Fire Code Chapter 49
Public Resource Code 4291



CHAPTER 49

REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDLAND-URBAN
INTERFACE FIRE AREAS

User note:

About this chapter:
In addition to the building construction requirements in the California Building Code and California Residential Code, this chapter contains

requirements for development and construction in Local Responsibility Areas (LRA) designated as Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones and
areas designated by the Board of Forestry and Fire Protection as State Responsibility Areas (SRA). While many of these provisions are found
in Title 14 and Title 19 of the California Code of Regulations, they are replicated here for the code user. The local jurisdiction has the authority
fo apply the same regulations to LRA when the regulations are adopted by local ordinance.

The requirements in this chapter reference the process for adoption of Very High Fire Hazard Severily Zones in the LRA; criteria for evaluating
existing subdivisions that are at significant fire risk and are without an adequate secondary egress; and criteria for fire safety provisions
required in the Safety Element of a city or county General Plan.

The chapter includes mitigation strategies to reduce the hazards of fire originating within a structure spreading to wildland and fire originating

in wildland spreading fo structures. These strategies are included in the following requirements:

1. Development of fire protection plans.

2. Development of landscape plans and long-term vegetation management.
3. Creation and maintenance of defensible space to protect structures and subdivisions.

SECTION 4901
GENERAL

4901.1 Scope. This chapter contains minimum requirements to
mitigate conditions that might cause a fire originating in a
Structure to ignite vegetation in the Wildland-Urban Interface
Fire Area, and conversely, a wildfire burning in vegetative
Juels to transmit fire to buildings and threaten fo destroy life,
overwhelm fire suppression capabilities or result in large
property losses.

4901.2 Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to provide min-
imum standards fo reduce the likelihood of life and property
loss due to a wildfire through the use of performance and pre-
scriptive requirements for construction and development in
State Responsibility Areas (SRA) and Local Responsibility
Areas (LRA) designated as a Moderate, High or Very High
Fire Hazard Severity Zone.

SECTION 4902
DEFINITIONS

4902.1 General. For the purpose of this chapler, certain terms
are defined as follows:

DIRECTOR. Director of the California Department of For-
estry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE).

FIRE PROTECTION PLAN. A document prepared for a spe-
cific project or development proposed for a Wildland-Urban
Interface (WUI) Fire Area. It describes ways to minimize and
mitigate potential for loss firom wildfire exposure.

FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES. Geographical areas
designated pursuant to California Public Resources Codes,
Sections 4201 through 4204 and classified as Very High, High
or Moderate in State Responsibility Areas or as Local Agency

2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones designated pursuant to
California Government Code, Sections 51175 through 51189.
The California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 1280
entitles the maps of these geographical areas as “Maps of the
Fire Hazard Severity Zones in the State Responsibility Area of
Cdlifornia.”
FIRE-RESISTANT VEGETATION. Plants, shrubs, trees
and other vegetation that exhibit properties, such as high
moisture content, little accumulation of dead vegetation, and
low sap or resin content, that make them less likely to ignite
or confribute heat or spread flame in a fire than native vege-
tation typically found in the region.
[Note: The following sources contain examples of types of
vegetation that can be considered fire-resistant vegefa-
tion. (Fire-resistant Plants for Home Landscapes, A
Pacific Northwest Extension publication; Home Land-
scaping for Fire, University of California Division of
Agriculture and Natural Resources; Sunset Western
Garden Book)]
IGNITION-RESISTANT MATERIAL. A type of building
material that complies with the requirements in Section 7044.2
in the California Building Code.

LOCAL RESPONSIBILITY AREAS (LRA). Areas of the
state in which the financial responsibility of preventing and
suppressing fires is the primary responsibility of a city, county,
city and county, or district.

STATE RESPONSIBILITY AREAS (SRA). Lands that are
classified by the Board of Forestry pursuant to Public
Resources Code Section 4125 where the financial responsibil-
ity of preventing and suppressing wildfires is primarily the
responsibility of the state.

49-3




REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREAS

WILDFIRE, Any uncontrolled fire spreading through vegeta-
tive fuels that threatens to destroy life, property or resources as
defined in Public Resources Code, Sections 4103 and 4104.

WILDFIRE EXPOSURE. One or a combination of radiant
heat, convective heat, direct flame contact and burning embers
being projected by vegetation fire to a structure and its imme-
diate environment.

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE (WUI). A geographical
area identified by the state as a "“Fire Hazard Severity Zone”
in accordance with the Public Resources Code, Sections 4201
through 4204, and Government Code, Sections 51175 through
51189, or other areas designated by the enforcing agency to be
at a significant risk firom wildfires.

SECTION 4903
PLANS

4903.1 General. The fire code official Is authorized to
require the owner or owner’s authorized agent to provide a
fire protection plan. The fire protection plan shall be pre-
pared to determine the acceptability of fire protection and life
safety measures designed to mitigate wildfire hazards pre-
sented for the property under consideration.

The fire protection plan shall be prepared by a registered
design professional, qualified landscape architect, qualified
Jire safety specialist or similar specialist acceptable to the
fire code official and shall analyze the wildfire risk of the
building, project, premises or region fo recommend neces-
sary changes.

The fire code official is authorized to require a prelimi-
nary fire protection plan prior to the submission of a final fire
protection plan.

4903.2 Contents. The fire protection plan shall be based on a
project-specific wildfire hazard assessment that includes con-
siderations of location, topography, aspect, and climatic and
fire history.

The plan shall identify conformance with all applicable
state wildfire protection regulations, statutes and applicable
local ordinances, whichever are more restrictive.

The plan shall address fire department access, egress,
road and address signage, water supply in addition to fuel
reduction in accordance with Public Resources Code (PRC)
4290; the defensible space requirements in accordance with
PRC 4291 or Government Code 51182; and the applicable
building codes and standards for wildfire safety. The plan
shall identify mitigation measures to address the project’s
specific wildfire risk and shall include the information
required in Section 4903.2.1.

4903.2.1 Project information. The final fire protection
plan shall be reviewed and approved prior to start of
construction.
4903.2.1.1 Preliminary fire protection plan. When a
preliminary fire protection plan is submitted, it shall
include, at a minimum, the following:

1. Total size of the project.

49-4

2. Information on the adjoining properties on all !
sides, including current land uses, and if known,
existing structures and densities, planned con-
struction, natural vegetation, environmental res-
toration plans, roads and parks.

3. A map with all project boundary lines, property
lines, slope contour lines, proposed structure
foundation foolprints, and proposed roads and
driveways. The map shall identify project fuel
modification zones and method of identifying the
futel modification zone boundaries.

4903.2.1.2 Final fire protection plan. The final fire
protection plan shall include items listed in Section
4903.2.1.1 and the following:

1. A map identifying all proposed plants in the fuel
modification zones with a legend that includes a
symbol for each proposed plant species. The plan
shall include specific information on each species
proposed, including but not limited to:

a. The plant life-form;
b. The scientific and common nanme; and
c. The expected height and width for mature
growth.
. Identification of irrigated and non-irrigated zones.

3. Requirements for vegetation reduction around
emergency access and evacuation routes.

4. Identification of points of access for equipment
and personnel to maintain vegetation in commnion

areas.

5. Legally binding statements regarding community
responsibility for maintenance of fuel modifica-
tion zones.

6. Legally binding statements to be included in cov-
enants, conditions and restrictions regarding
property owner responsibilities for vegetation
maintenance.

6]

SECTION 4904
FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES

4904.1 General. Lands in the state are classified by the Direc- <
for in accordance with the severity of wildfire hazard expected
to prevail in those areas and the responsibility for fire protec-
tion, so that measures may be identified which will reduce the
potential for losses to life, property and resources from wild-
fire,

4904.2 Classifications. The Director classifies lands into fire <
hazard severity zones in accordance with California Public
Resources Code, Sections 4201 through 4204 for State
Responsibility Areas and accordance with Government Code,
Sections 51175 through 51189 for areas where a local agency
is responsible for fire protection.

4904.3 Local agency requirements. Within 30 days after
receiving a transmittal from the director that identifies Very
High Fire Hazard Severity Zones, a local agency shall make

2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE




the information available for public review. The information
shall be presented in a format that is understandable and
accessible to the general public, including, but not limited fo,
maps. A local agency shall post a notice at the office of the
county recorder, county assessor and county planning agency
identifying the location of the map provided by the director
pursuant to Government Code, Section 51178, If the agency
amends the map, pursuant to subdivision (b) or (c) of Section
51179, the notice shall instead identify the location of the
amended map.

4904.3.1 Local agency ordinances. A local agency shall
designate, by ordinance, Very High Fire Hazard Severity
Zones in ifs jurisdiction within 120 days of receiving
recommendations firom the director pursuant to Section
51178. The local agency shall transmit a copy of an ordi-
nance adopted pursuant to Section 51179 (a) to the State
Board of Forestry and Fire Protection within 30 days of
adoption, as specified in Title 14, Division 1.5, Chapter 7,
Subchapter 3, Article 1.

4904.3.2 Local agency discretion. A local agency may, at
its discretion, include areas within the jurisdiction of the
local agency, not identified as Very High Fire Hazard
Severity Zones by the director, as Very High Fire Hazard
Severity Zones following a finding supported by substan-
tial evidence in the record that the requirements of
Government Code Section 51182 are necessary for effec-
tive fire protection within the area.

SECTION 4805
WILDFIRE PROTECTION
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

4905.1 General. Materials and construction methods for exte-
rior wildfire exposure protection shall be applied within geo-
graphical areas where a wildfire burning in vegelative fuels
may readily transmit fire to buildings and threaten to desfroy
life, overwhelm fire suppression capabilities or result in large
property losses.
4905.2 Construction methods and requirements within estab-
lished limits. Within the limiis established by law, construction
methods intended to mitigate wildfire exposure shall comply
with the wildfire protection building construction requirements
contained in the California Building Standards Code, includ-
ing the following:

1. California Building Code, Chapfer 74,

2. California Residential Code, Section R337,

3. California Referenced Standards Code, Chapter 12-7A.

4905.3 Establishment of limits. The establishment of limits for
the Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI) Fire Area’s required con-
struction methods shall be designated pursuant to the Califor-
nia Public Resources Code for State Responsibility Areas and
California Government Code for Local Responsibility Areas
(LRA) in Very High Severity Zones or by a local agency follow-
ing a finding supported by substantial evidence in the record
that the requirements of this section are necessary for effective
fire protection within the area.

2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREAS

SECTION 4906
VEGETATION MANAGEMENT

4906.1 General. Planting of vegetation for new landscaping
shall be selected to reduce non-fire-resistant vegetation in prox-
imity to a structure and to maintain vegetation as it matures.

4906.2 Application. All new plantings of vegetation in Stale
Responsibility Areas (SRA) and Local Responsibility Areas
(LRA) designated as a Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone
shall comply with Sections 4906.3 through 4906.5.3.

4906.3 Landscape plans. Landscape plans shall be provided

when required by the enforcing agency. The landscape plan

shall include development and maintenance requirements for

the vegetation management zone adjacent to sfructures and

roadways, and to provide significant fire hazard reduction
benefits for public and firefighting safety.

4906.3.1 Contents. Landscape plans shall contain the

Jollowing:
1. Delineation of the 30-foot (9144 mm) and 100-foot
(30.5 m) fuel management zones firom all structures.

2. Identification of existing vegetation to remain and
proposed new vegetation.

3. Identification of irrigated areas.

4. A plant legend with both botanical and common

names, and identification of all plant material sym-
bols.

5. Identification of ground coverings within the 30-foot
(9144 mm) zone.
4906.4 Vegetation. All new vegetation shall be fire-resistant
vegetation in accordance with this section.

Exception: Trees classified as non-fire-resistant vegeta-
tion complying with Section 4906,4.2.1.
To be considered fire-resistant vegetation, it must meet at
least one of the following:
1. Beidentified as fire-resistant vegetation in an approved
book, journal or listing firom an approved organization.
2. Be identified as fire-resistant vegetation by a licensed
* landscape architect with supporting justification.
3. Plants considered fire-resistant vegetation
approved by the local enforcing agency.
4906.4.1 Shrubs. All new plantings of shrubs shall comply
with the following:
1. Shrubs shall not exceed 6 feet (1829 mm) in height.
2. Groupings of shrubs are limited to a maximum
aggregate diameter of 10 feet (3048 mm).
3. Shrub groupings shall be separated fiom other
groupings a minimum of 15 feet (4572 mm).
4. Shrub groupings shall be separated firom structures
a mininum of 30 feet (9144 mm).
5. Where shrubs are located below or within a tree’s
drip line, the lowest tree branch shall be a minimum

of three times the height of the understory shrubs or
10 feet (3048 mmy), whichever is greafer.

and

49-5




REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREAS

4906.4.2 Trees. Trees shall be managed as follows within
the 30-foot (9144 mm) zone of a structure:

1. New frees shall be planted and maintained so that
the tree’s drip line at maturity is a minimum of 10
Jeet (3048 mm) from any combustible structure.

2. The horizontal distance between crowns of new
irees and crowns of adjacent trees shall not be less
than 10 feet (3048 mm).

3. Existing frees shall be trimmed to provide a mini-
mum separation of 10 feet (3048 mm) away fiom
chimney and stovepipe outlets per Title 14, Section
1299.03.

4906.4.2.1 Non-fire-resistant vegetation. New frees not
classified as fire-resistant vegetation, such as conifers,
palms, pepper trees and eucalyptus species, shall be
permitted provided the tree is planted and maintained so
that the tree’s drip line at maturity is a minimum 30 feet
(9144 mm) from any combustible structure.

SECTION 4907
DEFENSIBLE SPACE

4907.1 General. Hazardous vegetation and fuels shall be man-
aged to reduce the severity of potential exterior wildfire expo-
sure to buildings and to reduce the risk of fire spreading fo
buildings as required by applicable laws and regulations.

Defensible space will be managed around all buildings and
structures in State Responsibilily Areas (SRA) as required in
Public Resources Code 4291.

4907.2 Application. Buildings and structures located in the
Sfollowing areas shall maintain the required hazardous vege-
tation and fuel managemeni:

1. All unincorporated lands designated by the State Board
of Forestry and Fire Protection as a State Responsibil-
ity Area (SRA).

2. Land designated as a Very High Fire Hazard Severily
Zone by the Director.

3. Land designated in ordinance by local agencies as a
Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone pursuant to Gov-
ernment Code Section 51179.

4907.3 Requirements. Hazardous vegetation and fuels
around all buildings and structures shall be maintained in
accordance with the following laws and regulations:

1. Public Resources Code, Section 4291.

2. California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 1.5,
Chapter 7, Subchapter 3, Article 3, Section 1299.03,

3. Cdlifornia Government Code, Section 51182.

4. California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 1,
Chapter 7, Subchapter 1, Section 3.07.

SECTION 4908
FIRE SAFE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

4908.1 General. Pursuant to PRC 4290 all residential, com-
mercial and industrial building construction within state

49-6

responsibility areas approved after January 1, 1991, and
within lands classified and designated as an LRA Very High
Fire Hazard Severity Zone, as defined in subdivision (i) of
Section 51177 of the Government Code after July 1, 2021,
shall comply with the SRA Fire Safe Development Regula-
tions as specified in Title 14, Division 1.5, Chapter 7, Sub-
chapter 2.

4908.2 Subdivision map findings. Pursuant to Government
Code (GC), Section 66474.02, before approving a tentative
map, or a parcel map for which a tentative map was not
required, for an area located in an SRA or an LRA Very High
Fire Hazard Severity Zone, as both are defined in GC Section
51177, a legislative body of a county, except as provided in
GC Subsection 66474.02(c), shall make findings regarding
compliance with the SRA Fire Safe Regulations and the avail-
ability of structural fire protection and suppression services.
These findings and accompanying map shall be transmilted
to the Board of Forestry and Fire Protection and comply with
the requirements in Title 14, Division 1.5, Chapter 7, Sub-
chapter 1, Article 1.

SECTION 4909
SUBDIVISION REVIEW SURVEY

4909.1 Subdivision identification. Pursuant to Public
Resources Code Section 4290.5 and Title 14, Division 1.5,
Chapter 7, Subchapter 1, Article 2, the Board, in consultation
with the Office of the State Fire Marshal, shall survey local
governments to identify existing subdivisions, as defined in
Article 2, located in an SRA area or an LRA Very High Fire
Hazard Severity Zone without a secondary egress route that
is at significant fire risk.

4909.2 Fire safety recommendations. The Board, in consul-
tation with the Office of the State Fire Marshal and the local
government that identified the subdivision, shall develop rec-
ommendations to improve the subdivision’s fire safety. The
Board shall provide the final recommendations to the local
government that identified the subdivision and to the resi-
dents of the subdivision.

4909.3 Implementation. The Board shall maintain a list of
the subdivisions identified and the status of the implementa-
tion of the recommendations provided,

4909.4 Re-survey. Beginning July 1, 2021, the Board shall
conduct this survey every 5 years.

SECTION 4910
GENERAL PLAN SAFETY ELEMENT

4910.1 General. Pursuant to Government Code Section
65302(g)(3), the safely element of a city or county’s General
Plan shall be reviewed and updated as necessary to address
the risk of fire for land classified as SRA, as defined in Sec-
tion 4102 of the Public Resources Code, and land classified
as an LRA Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone, as defined
in Section 51177.

4910.2 Submission to the Board of Forestry and Fire Pro-
tection and local fire agencies. Pursuant to Government
Code Section 65302.5(b)(1), the draft element of, or draft

2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

10



amendment lo, the safety element of a county or a city’s gen-
eral plan shall be submitted to the State Board of Forestry
and Fire Protection and to every local agency that provides
fire protection fo territory in the city or county at least 90
days prior to either of the following: the adoption or amend-
ment to the safety element of its general plan for each county
that contains state responsibility areas; or the adoption or
amendment to the safety element of its general plan for each
city or county that contains a Very High Fire Hazard Severity
Zone as defined pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 51177,

4910.3 Review by the Board of Forestry and Fire Protection
and local fire agencies. The State Board of Forestry and Fire
Protection shall, and a local agency may, review the draft or
an existing safety element and recommend changes to the
planning agency within 60 days of its receipt regarding the
requirements in Government Code Section 65302.5(b)(2).
The review by the Board of Forestry and Fire Protection is
governed by Title 14, Division 1.5, Chapter 7, Article 6.

4910.4 Adoption of the safety element. Prior to the adoption
of its draft element or draft amendment, the board of supervi-
sors of the county or the council of a city shall consider the
recommendations, if any, made by the State Board of For-
estry and Fire Protection and any local agency that provides
fire protection to territory in the city or county. The board of
supervisors or city council shall respond to the Board of For-
estry and Fire Protection and any local agency providing fire
protection in compliance with Government Code Section
65302.5(b)(3) and (b)(4) and Title 14, Division 1.5, Chapter
7, Article 6.

2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE

REQUIREMENTS FOR WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREAS

48-7

i
i



California Code, PRC 4291. 3/10/25, 5:35 C‘::

AU OF7Feeel,
/ LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION
Home Bill Information | Galifornia Law Publications |  Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites
Code: Section:  seach @

Up~ << Previous Next >>  cross-reference chaptered bills PDF | Add To My Favorites
Search Phrase: | Highlight _

PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE - PRC
DIVISION 4. FORESTS, FORESTRY AND RANGE AND FORAGE LANDS [4001 - 4958] ( Division 4 repealed and added by

Stats. 1965, Ch. 1144. )

PART 2. PROTECTION OF FOREST, RANGE AND FORAGE LANDS [4101 - 4789.7] ( Part 2 added by Stats. 1965, Ch.
1144. )

CHAPTER 3. Mountainous, Forest-, Brush- and Grass-Covered Lands [4291 - 4299] ( Chapter 3 added by Stats. 1965, Ch.
1144.)

4291. (a) A person who owns, leases, controls, operates, or maintains a building or structure in the state
responsibility area shall at all times do all of the following:

(1) (A) Maintain defensible space of 100 feet from each side and from the front and rear of the structure, but not
beyond the property line, except as provided in subparagraph (B). The amount of fuel modification necessary
shall consider the flammability of the structure as affected by building material, building standards, location, and
type of vegetation. Fuels shall be maintained and spaced in a condition so that a wildfire would be unlikely to
ignite the structure. This subparagraph does not apply to single specimens of trees or other vegetation that are
well-pruned and maintained so as to effectively manage fuels and not form a means of rapidly transmitting fire
from other nearby vegetation to a structure or from a structure to other nearby vegetation or to interrupt the
advance of embers toward a structure. The intensity of fuels management may vary within the 100-foot
perimeter of the structure, with more intense fuel reductions being utilized between 5 and 30 feet around the
structure, and an ember-resistant zone being required within 5 feet of the structure, based on regulations
promulgated by the board, in consultation with the department, to consider the elimination of materials in the
ember-resistant zone that would likely be ignited by embers. The regulations may also alter the fuel reduction
required between 5 and 30 feet to integrate the ember-resistant zone into the requirements of this section.
Consistent with fuels management objectives, steps should be taken to minimize erosion, soil disturbance, and
the spread of flammable nonnative grasses and weeds. For purposes of this subparagraph, “fuel” means any
combustible material, including petroleum-based products, cultivated landscape plants, grasses, and weeds, and

wildland vegetation.

(B) A greater distance than that required under subparagraph (A) may be required by state law, local
ordinance, rule, or regulation. Fuel modification beyond the property line may only be required by state law,
local ordinance, rule, or regulation in order to maintain 100 feet of defensible space from a structure. Fuel
modification on adjacent property shall only be conducted following written consent by the adjacent
landowner. Any local ordinance related to fuel modification shall be in compliance with all applicable state laws,
regulations, and policies. Any local ordinance may include provisions to allocate costs for any fuel modification

beyond the property line.

(C) An insurance company that insures an occupied dwelling or occupied structure may require a greater
distance than that required under subparagraph (A) if a fire expert, designated by the director, provides
findings that the fuel modification is necessary to significantly reduce the risk of transmission of flame or heat

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=4291.&lawCode=PRC Page 1 of 3



California Code, PRC 4291. 3/10/25, 6:35 Q

sufficient to ignite the structure, and there is no other feasible mitigation measure possible to reduce the risk
of ignition or spread of wildfire to the structure. The greater distance may not be beyond the property line
unless allowed by state law, local ordinance, rule, or regulation.

(2) Remove that portion of a tree that extends within 10 feet of the outlet of a chimney or stovepipe.
(3) Maintain a tree, shrub, or other plant adjacent to or overhanging a building free of dead or dying wood.
(4) Maintain the roof of a structure free of leaves, needles, or other vegetative materials.

(5) Before constructing a new building or structure or rebuilding a building or structure damaged by a fire in an
area subject to this section, the construction or rebuilding of which requires a building permit, the owner shall
obtain a certification from the local building official that the dwelling or structure, as proposed to be built,
complies with all applicable state and local building standards, including those described in subdivision (b) of
Section 51189 of the Government Code, and shall provide a copy of the certification, upon request, to the insurer
providing course of construction insurance coverage for the building or structure. Upon completion of the
construction or rebuilding, the owner shall obtain from the local building official, a copy of the final inspection
report that demonstrates that the dwelling or structure was constructed in compliance with all applicable state
and local building standards, including those described in subdivision (b) of Section 51189 of the Government
Code, and shall provide a copy of the report, upon request, to the property insurance carrier that insures the
dwelling or structure.

(b) A person is not required under this section to manage fuels on land if that person does not have the legal right
to manage fuels, nor is a person required to enter upon or to alter property that is owned by any other person
without the consent of the owner of the property.

(c) (1) Except as provided in Section 18930 of the Health and Safety Code, the State Fire Marshal may adopt
regulations exempting a structure with an exterior constructed entirely of nonflammable materials, or, conditioned
upon the contents and composition of the structure, the director may vary the requirements respecting the
removing or clearing away of flammable vegetation or other combustible growth with respect to the area
surrounding those structures.

(2) An exemption or variance under paragraph (1) shall not apply unless and until the occupant of the structure,
or if there is not an occupant, the owner of the structure, files with the State Fire Marshal, in a form as the State
Fire Marshal shall prescribe, a written consent to the inspection of the interior and contents of the structure to
ascertain whether this section and the regulations adopted under this section are complied with at all times.

(d) The State Fire Marshal may authorize the removal of vegetation that is not consistent with the standards of this
section. The State Fire Marshal may prescribe a procedure for the removal of that vegetation and make the
expense a lien upon the building, structure, or grounds, in the same manner that is applicable to a legislative body
under Section 51186 of the Government Code.

(e) (1) The board, in consultation with the State Fire Marshal, shall develop, periodically update, and post on its
internet website a guidance document on fuels management pursuant to this chapter. The guidance document shall
include, but not be limited to, regionally appropriate vegetation management suggestions that preserve and restore
native species that are fire resistant or drought tolerant, or both, minimize erosion, minimize water consumption,
and permit trees near homes for shade, aesthetics, and habitat; and suggestions to minimize or eliminate the risk
of flammability of nonvegetative sources of combustion, such as woodpiles, propane tanks, decks, outdoor
furniture, barbecue equipment, and outdoor fire pits.

(2) On or before January 1, 2023, the board, in consultation with the State Fire Marshal, shall update the
guidance document to include suggestions for creating an ember-resistant zone within five feet of a structure,
based on regulations promulgated by the board, in consultation with the department, to consider the elimination
of materials in the ember-resistant zone that would likely be ignited by embers. Existing and new structures shall
meet the same standard for the ember-resistant zone, but regulations shall allow the staging of work for existing
structures to support implementation of the ember-resistant zone and address the costs of compliance.

(f) The State Fire Marshal shall do both of the following:

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtmi?sectionNum=4291.&lawCode=PRC Page 2 of 3



California Code, PRC 4291. 3/10/25, 5:3! 3{

(1) Recommend to the board the types of vegetation or fuel that are to be excluded from an ember-resistant
zone based on the probability that vegetation and fuel will lead to ignition by ember of a structure as a part of the
update to the guidance document pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (e).

(2) Make reasonable efforts to provide notice to affected residents describing the requirements added by the
amendments to paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) made in Assembly Bill 3074 of the 2019-20 Regular Session
before the imposition of penalties for violating those requirements.

(9) (1) The requirement for an ember-resistant zone pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) shall not take
effect for new structures until the board updates the regulations, pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (a), and
the guidance document, pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (e).

(2) The requirement for an ember-resistant zone pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) shall take effect for
existing structures three years after the effective date for the new structures.

(h) The department shall not change defensible space inspection practices and forms or enforcement to implement
the requirement for an ember-resistant zone until the State Fire Marshal makes a written finding, which the State
Fire Marshal shall post on the department’s internet website, that the Legislature has appropriated sufficient
resources to do so.

(i) For purposes of this section, a structure for the purpose of an ember-resistant zone shall include any attached
deck. This section does not limit the authority of the board or the department to require the removal of fuel or
vegetation on top of or underneath a deck pursuant to this section.

(J) As used in this section, “person” means a private individual, organization, partnership, limited liability company,
or corporation.

(Amended by Stats. 2024, Ch. 982, Sec. 4. (SB 504) Effective January 1, 2025.)

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtm!?sectionNum=4291.&lawCode=PRC Page 3 of 3



	Fire Protection Committee Agenda
	Item 3.A - 3A - Att 01 Minutes.pdf
	Item 4.A - 4A - SR.pdf
	Item 4.B - 4B - SR.pdf
	Item 4.B - Chapter 49.pdf
	Item 4.B - PRC 4291.pdf

